
UNITED NATIONS . 
Distr. 
GENERAL 

GENERAL 
AS.S EMBLY 

·A/Ac.138/SC.I/SR,l-4 
25 June 1971 

ENGLISH 
Original : ENGLISH/FRENCH 

COMMITTEE ON' TFiE PEACEFUL USES OF THE SEA-BED AND THE OCEAN 
FLOOR BEYOND THE LIMITS OF NATIONAL JUHISDIOTION 

§UB_-_QOMMITTEE I 

SUMMARY RECORDS OF THE FIRST TO THE FOURTH MEETINGS 

Held at·the Palais des Nations, Geneva, 
from 12 to 25 March 19?1 • 

Acting Chair.man: Mr• 1~RA.SINGHE Ceylon 

Chairman: Mr. SEATON United Republic of Tanzania 

Rapporteur: Mr. Pf{.OHASKA Austria 

Note. The list of representatives is to be found in documents 

A/A0.138/INF.4 and Corr.l and INF.4/Aa.d.1-,3,. 

GE.71-10590 
71-35428 

(33 p.) 
.. 



A/A0,!.38/SO .I/SR.1-4 

CONTE»I'I'S 

l,s~ meeting • 
• • • • • • 11 • • • a. ·• • 11 • , • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 3 

Election of officers 
~g._meetig,g • • • . • • , . • • • ., .. • . . • • . • • , • , • , • • • • 5 

Adoption of the agenda. 
Progra.nnne of work £01• l97J.. 

Jm . :m.eet:lng • • • • . . fl • 0 • 6 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 9 
Programme of work £or·l971. {continued) 

Ats meeti_ng • • • • • • .. • • ~ • • • , • • • • • • • • • , • , • • .. • 21 

Programme. of work for 1971 (concluded) 

UNCTAD 

'clNDP 

... 

ABBBEVIATIONS 

United Nations Conference on Trade and Development 
United Nations Developm~nt Programme 

" 



- .3 .. A/A0.138/sc.I/SR.1 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE FIRST MEETING 
Held on'Friday, 12 March 1971; at ll.45 a.m. 

Acting Chairman: Mr. AMERASINGHE Ceylon 

Chairman: Mr41 SEATON United Republic of Tanzania 

EIECTION OF OFFICERS 
The ACTING CHAIRMAN declared the meeting open and said that1 i;n their 

informal discussions, the various groups had agreed on the choice. of Mr .. Seaton (United 

Republic of' Taniania) as Chairman of Sub-CoIJllllittee I. 
Mr. S~aton (United Repg.blic of Tanzania) was unanimo'H,.s.lz elected Chairman and 

tooR the Chair. ' 

The CHAIRMAN expressed ~s deep appreciation of the·honour done to him and 
to his country in electing him Chairman. 

In their informal consultat1.ons, the various regional groups had agreed to propose 
Mr. R.anganathan (India), Mr. Thompson-Flores (Brazil) and Mr. Fekete (Hungary) as the 
three Vice-Chairmen ar1d Mr,, Prohaska (Austria) as the Rapporteur of Sub-Committee I. 

If' there were no objection, he would take it that the Sub-Connnittee accepted thoae 

proposals. 

IF was so agreeg. 
Mr. PROHASICA (Austria), Rapporteur, thanked the Sub-Committee for his election 

and said it could rest -assured that he would dis.charge his duties faithfully. 

The meeting rose ,at ll.25 a.m. -



A/AC.138/so.I/SR.2 

'SUMMARY RECORD OF THE SECOND MEETING 
Reld on Wednesday, 17 March 1971, at ,3.50 p.m. 

Chairman: ---- ~.fr. SEATON United Republic of Tanzania 
. 

ADOPTION OF THE 1\GENDA (A/AC.138/SC.I/L,.+) 

The. age~ga (A./£iC.1;38Lsc.I/L.1), was .,~dopted. 

PROGRAMME OF wu.RK.FOR 1971 (A/AC .. 138/sc.I/L.2) 
X!!CL.Qtl.A!m~ said that the programme of work he was propos:i:ng (A/.n..o ,138/SO. I/L. 2 

applied both to the current session and to that of July/August i971. 
Mr,JJLZJ!MB.]1~ (Democratic Republic of th~ Congo), referring to the agreement 

on ~he organization ·of work adopted by the main Committee,¥ said that a number of 

questions were still pendipg, including that of the priority to be given to the problem 

of the economic implications of the exploitation of sea-bed reso1.irces, and. he thought 
that it should be clearly, indicated that the Sub-Committee might also be required to . ' . 
consider any topic wh~ch the Com.~ittee might r~fer to it. 

Mr. POLI,ARD (Guyana) said he wondered why ther~ was a referenc~ toi "subjects" 

in par~graph 4 of the Chairman's note on the programme of work'(A/A0.138/so.l/L.2) 
since, for the moment: the Sub-,Com.."nittee h~d only qne subject before it: the preparation 

o± treaty articles embodying the international regime, including an international 
tnachinery. 

1'he CHAIRMJ\!i ~aid that his. note we,s, .Perhaps, rather too conci_sely -worded .. 
The Sub~Committee would, in fact, be asked to consider se~eral distinct though related. 
subjects~ preparatiun of the draft treaty articlos, the study of the economic implica­

tions of the exploitation of th~ resources of the area, the methods and criteria for 
sharing the benefits of such exploitatiqn, the special needs of the developing countries, . . 
including the needs and problems of the land-locked countries, and, possibly, the , 

unfavotµ"ab1e economic consequences of fluctuations in commodity prices resulting from· . ' 

·the exploration and exploitation of the ~~esources or the area. 

The Sub-Co:mmitte~ might hpld an exchange of views on that subject during the next 

two or three ~ork+ng days and then decide whether or not to establish one or more 
working parties to deal with those subjects. 

Hr.! ZEGERS_(Chile) said t4at the treaty defining the int~rnational regime 
would b4ve to inclttd~ provisions concerning the possible ecqnomic implications of the 
exploitation'of the sea-bed for the world econpmy. 

____ i.-____ _ 

!/ St-J0 A/ AO .1.38/sn. 45. 



A/AC.1'38/SO,I/SR.2 - 6 .. 

Mr. POLLARD (Guyana)· sai.d that he. 'had understooa f.rom the first part of the 
second sentence of paragraph l :J,n tl;le Chairman's.note that the various questions, 
including that of the economic implications of the exploitation of·the sea-bed and ' 
ocean floor, would simply be- studiAd in the oonten,t of the international re.gime. 

The CHAIRMAN said that the Sub-Oomndttae had· an extremeJ.y·complex task • 
• 

Some delegations thought that the treat1 embodying the international regime should 
~onteµ.n provisions to minimi.~e the econo~c implications for the world market of 
exPloitation of the resources of the sea-bed and ocean floor; others wished to include 
provisions relating to land-looked countries. On the other hand, the General Assembly 
had requested that reports should be prepared on particular topics. The Sub-Committee 
would-have to choose a method. It might, for instance, decide to include a detailed 
study on those subjects in its report to the nex't session of the General As~embly and 
not to prepare the draft articles on. the international regime until the following :year_. 

Mr. ARIAS SCHREIBER • (Peru) said that, before embarking on the study ot: any 

particular question or establishing working parties, the Sub-Corm ttee should ask the 
Committee 1 tself for some clarificat,iov. a'bout the g~testions pending • so that it would 
know exaptly what approach to adopt to its work on the international regime. That 
view-had, incidentally, been expressed by many delegations both at the earlier official 
meetings and during recent consultations. 

The CHAIRMJi..M said that the three reports by the Secretary-General which the 

SU:o~Committee·had to consider would not -be ready until the beginning of"the July session. 
' ' In the circumstances, the Sub-Committee might perhaps begin preparing the draft treaty 

articles on the international :regime with the help of the wo;rking papers and draft 
texts already available. 

MI,. ZEGERS (Chile) said that his delegation was prepared to agree to that 
course prov~ded that delegations were entitli~d ·to deal, in their statements., with the 
three questions which would form the subject of the Secretary-General's reports; 
without waiting for those reports to·be distrib·J.ted. The intel"nationa.l regime could 

not 'oe dissociated either f'roln ,the question of equitable sharing in the benef.i1,a to bf:1 
·derived from exploi.tation of the sea-bed; or from that of possfble consequent flue- ;~..1~·L.?l't,: 

in commodity prices. 

' ~.!...&J;,9U.ANE (Algeria) said he entirely a~reed with tl'ie representative of 

Chile. In.his view, it was impossible to begin drafting the articles on the inter­
national regim.o until all the relevant do.cumentation was available, including the 
reports on the implicationij for the world economy of tJ ... ·.1itation of the sea-bed 0 



- 7 - A/AC.138/sc.I/SR.2 

Mr. KHANACHET (Kuwait,) said it might be helpful if the Sub--Committee were to 
use the little time at its disposal to start a general discussion to allow delega:tions 
to stat~ the positions of their governments on the items which the Committee had 

already decided to eritrust to it. Such a general debate could be held without taking 

any decision on the question of priorities, and each delegation could ..i..ndioate its 
Government's position on that point also. , 

The CHAIRMAN proposed that, at the two or three meetings it could still hold, 

the Sub-Committee should have a general exchange of views on the subjects ~ithin its 

terms of reference. Since the reports requested from the Secretary-General were not 
yet ready, members of the Sub-Committee would not be able to go deeply into the 

questions to be reported on by the Secretary-~N:ieral, but they cotlld refer to them in 
their statements since such questions had a bearing on the draft articles to be prepared. 
If a general discussion of that kind were begun at the next meeting, the exchange of 

views on questions of principle could bo completed at the current session and working 
parties could be set up and ready to start work at the begirming of the next session, 

~he Chairman's proposal·was adopted. 

The meeting rose at 4.40 pam. 



... 9 ... 

SUMMARY RECORD . OF TI-IE THIRD MEE'l'ING 

Held on Thursday, 25 Mg.rah- 1971, Et'~ ll./i.5 s:.m, · 

:t,1:c-. SEATOI~ United Republic of Tanz6!lia 

PROGRIUIME Olf' WORit FOR 1971 {A/AC .138/SO. I/L. 2) ( conti~~q) 
~t,,_!:,I.M,TO ( Ceylon) oa.id ·chat po.rasraph 9 0£ the Declaration of Principlo·s 

Governing the Sea..:..Bed and tbe Ocean J?loor, and the Subsoil Thereof [Gener.al Aasembl:, 

r~so~.uf,:7..on. 217/+9 (mr~7 wao of ;;ax·ticuls.1· mport@oe because it set out, in conci~o tz1'T.lo, 

·bhe nat:.uroq tu.notions and modalities of establishing -'.:;he inter.national regime for the 

see.-oed9 :i:~ ·~ho itiew o.f h$.s delo~ation, the most approp?'iate means o~ eay6bl'-shing t,l~ . 
reg:trte would be by nluJ .. tilateral tra{l:~y. I:l keeping with its Government' s policies ®d 

th.a 1·eocgni~t-:d sto.tus ot the e,3a.-bed nn<;l. its ra~ourcoo .as the common heritage of :raa.n.~i.nd, 

r..i s ,:1cl~g~tion would seek to ensur~ the w5 .. dea·t possible participation by all States in 

the establishment ond operation cf ti:J.e regimP.. 

His de.Legation woitld wish to see a new internaticmal .organization 3stablished, 

wlrl.ch he 't•:ou.1d r.e.fer t,r.) as t~1e trA,1thc.•x-ity11 ., wi·th full in'ternationaJ. legal personality 

r,.:,.10. co:m.pranensiva iunci!ionJ a:nd po-wers ~ In accordance with the economy-mi..'r!ded approet.'!h 

to be ta:cr~ured in ·bho:-:,0 r,w.tter&, it, uonld not e:>~ect the Authority to exercise the full 

rc.nge o!. its ftmct-:i.on.:::1 r:7gh:b from th.a st-Jrt; for iriste.nca, whilo the .P:uthority shou7.r: 

olea.rly be empowered by ita cc:,nst,itu'3nt i11struments to und.er·~aka exploitation on ,tta 

ovm il)it~T.ati'\·e, Johe high r:i..3k, o.s W""51:l a.s the prohablo laok of expertise;, might rtl1.'·, 

out such r~c·M .. vi"uios s·li N1c be~;fnnir,.fJ a..'1.d i·t. mieht be better £or it to woi•k through 

pr:t.va·he co:crhl"'eoto, .. s 01~ ·ooritil~-s it.i:Jel.i~' to if:.lSi.d.ng ~xploite.t,;ton ~ioences. 

'!in .,,tu·v:icz·i"'u.'/ shoU::..ri posss~a nll t,i1e naoe~s~-y .powers to ensure the• orderly and . . 
Da.t'e dev0l opme:nt 0.:.11 rat1.onaJ. man~gqment · of t:10 t.r.oa. end i·ts reso~ces, as well as • tho 

eqv.:t table shP.l'ing of' bonef.'its. lw~on:g thoso powe1's ~eht be the power to authoriso . . . . 
e:x.-plo:;.•e:hion o.r.:l e~-pJ.o5:bation uct1 v:t•bios in the -int~rnat:tonal area, and to parfol~ such 

l.'Cilat~d fu.11ctio11s as the registration and inspection of' activities; to .carry out 

exploration and. exploi tat:ton activ:t ties through its owti res<;>ur·oes :or through oontra~tors·; 

to tcrb a:.:;· Et cl~a"'l'j n~-h:'llse f'or ·the,. collection c.nd di.sseru:lnat:,.. .. on Qf information relat~i~ 

to seo. .... bcc3 activities; to prr;m.ote" an organized ttain~ng,.programrne ·for scientista f1.1.--e:a 

clev1;1lopi11g com1tries; -'ijo collecrb and share all monetary lµ'ld otheJ? -benefits acc1'uing ·ho 

pa:rticipnt.ing Sta.t,~s; "4io take mea.Rures, either on its own or in ·co-operation 'wit!1. --3•:i.ch 

:tnsti tut16ns as UNC'l:.AD, to :t:•odress any achrerse economi.c effects ca.used ·by e:x:plo:L te+,icn 

act:bri t:tss such o.s iluott1.ationiJ :l.n the price of raw materials m:1.ned .on lend; to teke 
' . . ' 

:mea:su:,-eo ·-r:or the pl"e~ervati6~: of ·bho mo.:rine envlr;onme:o.t3 including pollutior,. co11trol; 



A/ A.q 1.38/SO. I/SR. 3 

_to promote new uses or the sea-be-1, ~uch as communications, transportation, buildings; 
• and finally; to settle disputes· and impose sanc.tiona in the event qf non-compliance v.l.th 

obliga.tions. 
For the institutional framework necessary for the efficient perf'Qrlll.anoe of those 

fu.ncti.ons, he envisaged a fairly classical patt·ern comprising first, a plenary organ • 

ot the entire mempership, m~eting an.rm.ally or at sorud other prescribed interva1; secondly, 
an executive organ of limit~d me~bership bu.t representative composition - perhaps twenty­
five members ... organized to lll!Jet at short.intervals or remain in. permanent sessi~n, e.nd 

to. be responsible .... £or· da:y-to-da:y policy within ·the broad. lines laid down by the plena.ey­
organ; tl~rdly, a tribunal for the settlement of disputes, which were likely to be of. a 
somewhat specialized order; and fourthly, a see;retariat .. At the present'sta.ge, his 
reference to a tribunal wab without prejudice to sn.y position bis Government might take 
on the question of whetht:lr Qr• ,not its jurisdictions should be oonsensual or compulsory. 

Rep1:esentation on the executive organ would, be broad_ly on a geographical basis but it 

might also be necessary to provide for the representation of certain groups of 'special 
interests, such a~those of.land"!l'locked or shelf-looked countries, countries with 
extensive contµientaJ. shelves, and the like. 

·His Government would not wish decisions of the plenary or the executive organ of 
the macb:f:nery to be made subject.to .the-application of eny system. of preferential-voting 

. . 
rights, in other words, .the principle of 0one State, one vote" should apply in the . . . 
deliberation.a of both .organs, and there should not be any veto system either open or· 

" . . . 

disguised~· lt_s~ould be recognized., however, that certain developed countries whose 
. . . .. 

technolog-loal capacity or financial assistanoa would be essential for the success or 
viability of the org~ization might seek a greater role in the direction of its affairs . . 

and the formation of policy. It might be ne~ssary, therefore, to.devise some method 
that would· attract tha support of tho~e OOU...itries, without at the same time sacrificing 
the too.a ~stat~, ~ne vote" prlJJ:ci:ple. 

Tentatively ·he e·nvisagee .that the president of the executive orgaii s~ould be a~ the . . ' 

same ~!.me the ohiet executive 8:1'-d legal representative- of the organization and the head 
of ·the secre'tariat. As· the head of an essentially operational organization; he could· 

. . . 

not. be chosen !rom .alllong the me~be:rs o~ . ~he :exe_quti ve· organ, but should be recruited from 

outside on the basia of outstanding tsq~ical competence and admini\trative abii:t.ty. 
·In addition to the p~cipal'organs .he had meiltione~, the Authority should posses~ 

. such subsi~ary bodies as might be necessar.y for the perform.an~e of certain functions of 

a techni~aJ. nature .. Thos~ bod.i~s might be charged w.lth such :£'unctions ~s the establish­
ment of sound operationt:µ. rules and practices, the inspection of' operations to ensure 



- 11 - A/A0.138/SC.I/SR.3 

compliance ·with those rules and practices, the administration of a system of benefit­
sharing approve.d by the plenai7 organ, and measures to ·deal with price :fluctuations. 

I . 

With regard to the nature of the licensing system to be applied by the Authority., 
it ~uould be such as to engage diractiy or indirectly the responsibility of the State 
of the operator. That might be accomplished by issuing a licence for exploration or 
exploitation only t'o States or groups of St3:tes, or to natural or juridical persons, 
tmder conditions whereby the person1s State should ste.nd behind him, guarantee compliance 
with the terms or the licence, and accept ultimate responsibility :f'or any damage caused. 
as a result of such activities. Detailed rules for determining nationality and· fixing 

liability would have to be worked out. 
·Perhaps most important of' all was the question of distributing the b~nef'its derived 

from ~ea-bed activities. Such benefits might include, first, funds received as revenue,. 
or from the sale of raw materials by t,he Authority, or froln other sources; secondly, 
the raw materials themselves; and thirdly, information tha·b might become available to 
the .Authority througl_l scientific research programmes or other means,, A scheme for the 
dist,ribution of funds r·e·oeived by the Authority would have to be worked out in eolla.bor­
a.tion with the economists. In devising such a scheme, it should be remembered., first, 

. . 
that thr,s·Ei funds would be· the property of the niem.b3rs and that it would be wrong to . . 
subject the transfer of such finds to . any of the oondi tions ft'equently associated w.i. th 

so-called "foreign aid11 operations. For example, it ,-.rould clearly be inappropriate for 
the trensfer of funds to be made subject to criteria. 'based on the "economl:-c perfo:tmance11 

of' a-country or the success of a countryts development efforts. The members were· 
entitled to receive those funds, although in varying proportions, and the .funds sllould 

not be regarded in any sense as "foreign aid". For that reason, it would seem advisable 
. . 

that the Authority itself - perhaps through a subsidiary organ established fpr the 
purpose - should undertake the sharing or distributj.or1 of bene~i ts to pa,:rtioipating 
States, rather than that the funds .should be transferred through.one or more of the 

existing international or regional financial institutions. Since each of those 
institutions would'be bound to apply its own regulations and operational policies., that 

,. ' • ' . 

would inevitably result in the suhjection of the transf'er of those funds to condition$ .. 
which might be conside;red inanpropriate. In order to avoid.that situation., it•might be 
. ' . • . . . ~ . 
necessary-to amend the charters bf those organization~,. and that·would hardly seem 
worth'fjthile. 

A second .essential point to·remember would be the principles relating to sharing of - , . 

benefits. contained in the Declaration of Principles ,LGeneral Assembly resolution·•2749. {YJJl'J]t. 

according to which the international sea-bed area and its resour<1ai.i were the "common 



. . 
., 

• A/A0.138/sc.I/SR.?, - 12 -

he"'itage of manld;nd11 • In•other ~ords.,. ·each State in the world comm.unity pos·st,ssecl rights 

to an. indi:vidual shaJ.~e ~£ the area and its resources.. One £unction of the Authority 
-would be to ensure the eg.~table .. sharing by St;ates· in the benefits djrived·t,...om that 
area, taking in:to particulai". considar~tion the interests and needs ot the- developing 

countries, whether land-looked or coastal,., 
In bis opinion, the spirit of the Declaration could best be ·impleJnented•· it .the 

• sharing of benefit~ were related to the needs of· the countries aonoernecf and· based on 
an agreed scale ·whereby ·the, least developed would receive the m,,&t: and th~ mos:t. developed 

would receive the. least. The idea ot listing countries according to thei~ degree ot 
need had baen the subject of considerable study over. the la.s:fi two years,bQth by the· 

UNCTAD Group of Experts on special measures in i'&vour of the least developed-among t})e 
developing countries and. by. a wor~e;. group of the Committee ~or Development Planniq 
of the Economic and S.ooial Oouncil.!7 • 

In both studies, the groups of' experts ht¢ ~et •.themselves the in1 tial task of • 
trying, to .. detel"llline which in fact were the least developed countries .of the world. In 

doµig so, they had arrived at a list of countries classified in ascending ox-der according 

to t~eir standard of' development •. The starting point-for the UNCTAD cle.ssii'ice.tion had 
been :e_ep_pggit~ i~come expressed in a oammon monetarY, miit .. United States dollars. That 
method had the advantage ,of p~rmi tting countries to be ·classified, but was OJ?en ·bo 
cri t~ .. cism because :ee.F ce,pi ts income level alone ·did not . co,rer all the aspects of develoP­
ment. There were, £or example, countries which, despite their high·aeE q§Pit~ income, 
va:t'e regarded as "deve+oping1f because of the limited divers., .. ioation of their P?'odU.c-tion 

and relatively unslc;lled lab~ur force, or tiJ.e precarious level of· ·li v:Lng 'Of· t}:leir 
· inhs.bj;ha:qts. 

. 
For those reasons, the. e_xperts had sought to add other indicators whioh ··would make 

. . 
it possible to represent the . s"'candard of development more sa.tisf act.orily. Analysis or 

.. 
data. on t.he.f;loonomio a.ud social stru.ct~e of many countries bad revealed interrelations 
bett-1ee11. oer·tain indicators •• l'lot\.?ithatanding the many difi'erent• for.ma which the country's 

• 'JI · lo,r the . relevant . UNOTAD documents, s~e ·Qffipial Re9orgs bf, ,th§ :,J:age and 
».m.J.:.2P.m§..q~~' R:l.!!~b...~es.§ioll, first .Md sasQPCl.l.l~;hs, ge:ge1;t. agenda item 15, 
dooumE:int TD.B 269; ibid., Ninth.Session, 1,hirs part, Annexes, agenda item 151 document 
?D/B/28.8; ~•,, Te~-flli..11.ass;!..o.!!,_ Em.L, •. r second apd tll.!l'S mw:ts, Annexes, agend. a item 12, 
docume~t TD/B/310. See also TD/~/292 (mimaographecp •. 
F.or the ·documents of the Ooinmittee for Development Pla.ruv,ng, $ee E/A0.54/L.3.6 ~d 
E/Ao.;4/is.40 (both mimsographed}. • • 



- 13 ,-

development process mi~ht take, it h'ad been t'ound, for'·exsmple., ,that a given degree of 

indusvriallzation was linked with a particular structtil"e of employment; which· in1 tu:m·. 
bore a relation· to a cei-tain level of -educatitm. • • Using a combination of' those• other· 

' indicators 'together w:i.th.·the indicator of per .capita ·o:t irtcome· level, it~.had·proved 

pos_sible to produce a co;mposi te index in which the oontribution of each indicator to 

ascer1fo.inment · of'· the level:· df development we.s • predetet-roined, as weil ·as a. cla.cstfic.Ettion 

of countrie,s according· t·o a scale wbich ref'l'ooted all th~· different aspects of develo~ent 

l"epr~scnted by the: ioonollli'o' ·and· r.1ocial indicators. 

'It was ·not· his intent'1on to advocate one set ot indicators 1"ather than another or • 

to include· a· specific propo·sal as to ho\.t ·benefits w~1·e to be shared, since it .was ·:far 

too eB.:t'l:V to·· ·think in • those terms. However·,· his delegation maintained its preferenQtl 

for sh1"3.X'ing • acco~ding t·o the needs er countries as the' most. equ.i table methQd.- And tp.ose .. 
11ne~ds1i, •• ho suggested, might be agree·d· ·upon· on the bas:ts· of ·a :Sdale. reflecting· standards 

of develoP.D,ent,. although a seal.a est·a1:ftished, .6f course, would !have to ba rev:L.,w.ed as :-a 

State ascended or descended the deve~.opment· ladder. 

The sharing of raw· materials would present special problems that "t-iould nsed.1 •• •the.~ost 

CCL"'.'eft'.l investigation. The raw materials might· be ~obtained by the Authorit,··thrbugh its 
' ' ' ' . i 

o,-m operations,, or· -the Authority ·might:·establish~ ·stock.piles• or 1'a\.t,,materials- obtained· 

elselJhere. He would. sugge'st that raw materials coming under the;-0ontro1 ··of ·the•. Atitho~tt 
sho1.:u.a be subject to special conditions to ensure 'that they ·-were tised exolusively·.fo:r • 

peac~:l\u ·purposes. The question ot how ·Such ratA materials·might·:ba .D)ade available,, to 
' . 

1')a:rt"icipat:tng Sta~es vf!lS' one 'With which 'the S~b-Conmii ttee· · would have to .come. to gr.ips 

very s0011. 

"bn the que·stfon of the ·~harint{·of intormation derived f'rO?D. sea""'bea:. aat:tvit:leo,~ the 

Suh-Oommi ttee couidl proceed on. the basis of paragraph 10 of the•; Declaration of : PrµiQipl.es ~ 
whioli required that States •.:should promote· international co-operation and aQientitio 

research by participation in: interna:t:tonal progr&mne'S and by· encburaging. eo-operation . 

:tn scientific research by personnel of. different· a-ountri·e-s 1 ·througq. the .publication Q'C 

research· ·progra.xmnea and the ci:i.ssentlnation of the re·su1 ts. oft such reseai~ching through 

international oh'ahneia, a11d by ·co-operat:l:on -in measures to strengthen· the resear.ch 

capabilities· of. deve1oping. countries-. Th'.at. was ·a :inatter, 6£ the· .first· :Lmi,ortanoe .for." 

developing countries like his own, since 'it ,1as ·orily• throo.gh the· aooumulation ot •expe;r.t!;se· 

and the deve1oplhen~ of its··own ·taohriolt1Jgy that it ooul:d eventually equip.itselt to taltt,· 

full advantage of the • be'hefi ts accruing to it ·rrOlll the common heri tag-e·~ of.:~. 

Perhaps the most crucial pi--oblem of all was that of the J.imi ts of national juris .... 

diction over the sea-bed. Obviously, the ·limits of that jurisdiction had impli"Cat1:ons · • 



A/io~l38/so.I/SR,3 - 14 -

tor the viability of the new international machinery.to be established. At prese~t, his 
deleg,a.tion•s view-sen that subject were necessarily·of aver, general nature, sinoa it 
believed that a·deoision. on the question ot limits should be taken only after the ba$1o. 

. . 
elements ot· ·a regime had been agreed upon, and that a final recommendation on that 
question should be formulated in Sub-Committee II.· 

With rega'l'd to the limits of ~urisdiction., several suggestions had been put forward • 
• 

It had been suggested, i'or example, that the limits migh·t be established at a fixed· 
distance f'rom the baseline for the tex-ritorial sea.of the coastal State, or if a rule 
ou the breadth of th.e terri torisl. sei were adopted, at a fixed distance from the outor 
lim1t of that sea. Other criteria suggested included a £:1.xed depth seawards frOJll the 
ooaatal State, a combination of distanoa and depth criteria at the choice of the coastal 
State, a'criterion based on g~ologicel1 geographioal and economic factors., a criterion 
bas«f on regional ~onsiderations, an arbitrarily determined point on the continental 
margi11; or· posaibl:y the limits ot national jur1sd1ct:Lon might be fixed by deterJllining 
fit'st the limits or the international area universally admitted to be outside the juris-. 
diction ot the coastal States. 

His Govermnent had not yet fuJ.ly considered the implioations of tb.e· various proposed 
methods· but oertain basic considerations were like)J' to influence its i'inal decision. 
First, it env:1sag$d an international tnachinery w:Lth oQmPrehenaive powers and tu.notions 
that would ensure that the developing countries received their due share of wealth of 
the sea-bed, Secondly, th~ maohiner:, should be able to oolleot sufficient revenue to 
mke its establislunent worthwhile to participating Sttt.tea. Thirdly, the hchiner, should 
be empolrered to collect the substantial :revenues from resouroe exploitation in araae that . . 
Mere alreadf exploitable, or would be prot.ttablf exploitable 1n the immediate tu.ture. 
Fourtblf, the limit of national jurisdiction to be established should have a :rational 
basis and should be equJ.table towards the coastal State. His deleg&tion could ·not accept 

~ . 
some arb:ttra:q depth or distanct~ as having a111 rational basis; it would need to be 

'. . 
convinced ot the ·eq,uity ot any- given solution. . . 

Th6 idea ot·an intermediate zone :ln which the ~oaatal State would receive preferen­
tial treatment should be exatn:i.ned by Sub-Committee I •.. Such an idea; however, would 
amount to aokuowledging that a State had rights ·in the· natural prolOJliation ot ite ooast­
·line under the ·sea to ·v!rtuallr. all1 depth. • It thus went beyond the terms of the· defi­
nition of the oont1nental sheli' oontained iri article l of the 19;s Convention on tbe 
Oont1nentei Shelf;Y 1t appeared to assume -that tho entire continental margin, whether . 

a/ See United Nations_ ~eati: Series., vol. 499, P• 312. 



- 15 - • A/Ab.1;8/sc.I/SR.3 

e,cploitable by the coastal Sta.ta or not, was somehow the preserve of that State, whose 
ape oial posi t:l.on must be reoogm:zed by the Internati9nal oolllllluni ty. Ir that approaoh 
proved· .tb be the only praatioal ona, the international connn.uni ty should perhaps seek• • 
acceptance of' tha idea that the sea-bed attthori ty rather than the coastal State ·should 
administer the intermediate zone. His Govermnent had not, however, yet reached SXlY" 

conclusion·on the ;question of an interm~diate zone. 
Mr., ~QMfSQN:--f&Ol®§ (Brazil) said that dratting a treaty ·on the international 

regime was not only a juridioal task; it also had a poli t:toal and technical character. 
The important question.of the aoonomio implications of the exploitation of the 

international a;ea of the sea-bed deserved thorough study. Although the lack of 
available figures on exploitation activities and on the resouroes available made any' 

comprehensive study at that stage difficult, certaiA basio principles should be taken 
into account.when drafting the regime. 

The international instruments setting 'forth the tunotions of. the international 
organi;ation ~hould contain provisions guaranteeing their universal character. In dealing 
with what uaa now recognized as the common heritage of mankind, all the main trl!nda of 
opinion .should be respected. 

The regime should apply to ell kinds •of activities, Adequate provisions already 
existed with regard to·aubmarine oa.ble laying, tor example, but the sea-bed organization 
should exercise some form of technical control over suoh activities because of their 
close relationship with other uses· of the area. Even the rnili ta.l"Y uses of the sea-bed 
could not be ignored by the international maohinert, although concrete proposals ori that 
subject ole~ly f'ell within the competence of the Oommi. ttee on Di.sar.mament. 

Although it would not be possible in the- initial stages for the organization to 
engage direotl.1 in .e)..-ploration or eXl)loitation., it should be able.to oarry on such 
aotivities ef1~ectively 1n the future.. Meanwhile> it might grant lioenoas to States or 
groups of Stat~a which would in turn extend those licences to national companies or 
international. joint ventures of a regionel . character. The organi.zation would thus dee.l · 
directly 'With member States, which would be vested with total responsibility for their 
oom.panies.vis-a-v:ts the internatioilal comm.t-mity, 
. . ,I41oet1ces should b~ issued on1¥ after careful study of knoirm· resoi.troeo. That would 

allou •for the rational management and oonservation of l."esouroes and the control of raw 
material prices., and ensure that . developing coua.t:riea and the org&?.ization itself' had 
access to the best possible areas in which to undertalte exploitation onoe they han 
acquired the technical ability to do so. 

The benefits accruing from sea-bed activities should in the first stages consist 
or fees ~hafged f9r lioep.oes ,and r91al~eB qn P,roduqtion. ~e ;1<:lea. of. a .tax on .. the . 



... 16 -

Pto.t'its or opers:~ing companies was unaooeptable because profits were di:f'i'icult to assess 
and control. Any system based on that idea would lead ·co the bullt of ·the prof';L ta< being 
channelled to the companies and thus to the industrially developed countries rather·than 
to the in~~rnationaJ. organization E+tld the developing nat~ons, as provided for in General 

. Assembly rE;!so;~~ion 27 49 {~) • .Moreover, benefits should be distributed direot. to : 
l 

mem.ber Statea., with speoitµ priority tor- developing countries., both land-locked and 

¢oastal, after :making proViaion for the ex:penaes of the international ~r~a.nization and 
tor taohnioal.-assistanoe progr-.es. The idea of. turning over the benefits to~ 
existing international organization to finance programmes £or the benefit of developing 
nations was in.flat cohtradiotion with the principle of the common heritage of mankind; 

the benefits b(;llonged to the world community and could not become a sttbstitute for the 
:f'inanoing of P.rogreµnm.es which ware a moral responsibility of the developed countries. 
It would be useful if', in that oonne:xion, the • Secretariat oOLild now bring up to date 
its preliminal7 note on·the sharing of b~nefits.'JI • •• 

The org~zation should have the responsibility tor co-ordinating and providing 
teohni~~ asaistanoe programmes to developing countries in lll8.tters conoerned with the 
exploration and exploi ta.tion of sea-bed resoU?·cea, p~g special attent:Lon to the. 

prob~~a and n~e4s. of the ~eipient Stfl.tes and, particularly', the land-locked States. 
Wi·thout prejudice to the rigbts of c::oastal States, the organization.· ·should also . 

be empowered to formulate and eni'oroe international standards for the control of 
pollution resultitlg from sea--bed aotivities. The treaty should define the right of 
coastal States to.. take :meaa:ur.f#3 to pro.teat areas under their j'Ul"isdiation from 

• ' 
potentially hamtul activities .. undertaken bv.rond those lim:t. ts. 

The organization should license, supervise and promote soientif:!.o research in the 
international sea-bed area; it should also eneure the dissemination of the results ·of 
all research activities directly undertaken by States. 

.. With tegard to the· settlement of disputes; provision should be Llade for a flexible .. 
system ba~ed on voluntary arbitration by ag. pqq groups. 

·One of the·main tasks.of the organization would be to implement such meaattres at:1 
• t'.iie regulation and oontrol of production in order to m:L~ze the effects of tluctuations 

. . . 
ct raw material prloea which might adversely afteot developing oountr;lea. The' ·atatem 

• . ~ . 
of providing compensation for loss of ravenue was unjust; ·it would mean diverting funds 

. 
which belonged to the developitrg countries to the sole benefit or the operators· engaged 

in exploitation and.the devtloped nations to which they belonged. 

,_:e,..... it,111.dtc IR 



.... 17 ... 

The regiln.e should contain a provision to·enstll"e that oount~iesdid not discriminate 

in the1r·«omestic iegislation in.favour of the products of their' Ovtn operators in the 
internatio11al sea-bed area. Developing countries would thus be guai"anteed the poaai.:. 
bilitt of expor~ing their.products to the world's largest consumer markets • .An adequate 
escape clause woulc'.L of course be necessary to aateguard the economies of the devel~ping 
nations. 

The iriternati0nal machinery for the administration of uhat constituted the co~on . . 
, heritage of mankind should be equitable and pay due regard to the interests of all 

countries, particularly the developing countries. It aµ,pea.red to be unanimously agreed . . 
that general policy and guidelines should be entrusted to a body co11~i~ti11g of all member 

States and meeting from time to time. A council would also be neeessary to deal with .all 
' . 

questions entrus·bed to the machinery. The oQuncil should be sufficiently small to ensure 
efficiency but large enough to ensure a p:.,;-operly repreaentative·cha:raoter, and its 
m~mbers should be elected by the General As~embly strictly on the basis·ot equitable 
geograpJiioal distribution. 

His delegation favoured some kind. of a regional a.pproaoh to the question of the • 
. . . 

administration of the sea-bed area and its resources, licensing, and possibly ooileoti9n, . ' 

and distribution of benefits. 
The question of tha limits of national sovereignty over the sea-bed was indissolubl.7 

linked to that of the boundaries of the coastal State 1e jurisdiction ov~r-the oontine:q.tai 
, .. 

slljlf' and over the seas adjacent to :its shores and closely connected.with such questi~ns • 
' . . 

as security, fishing rights and pollution. Those were simply different aspects ot one 
problem.1 the dellmination of national juriadicti~r, over the area extending se~wards f.t,om 

the coastline of a State, both 'the air space, the waters e.nd the ooean floor. The only 
practical criterion for defining thoae areas was that·of distance froin. the coast; a system. 
based on depth would be difficult to implement in practice but the situation of certain~ 
,countries endowed withbttoad continental shelves and shallow waters ·round their coasts· . . . 
should bs ·taken in~o account~· Any deptn figure which 1!11~ht 'be advanced should be con- . 
sidered in the light of tlie geographical oonfigurati~n of the different continentaf shelves. 

The need'tor a strong regime and maohiner., did not necessarily imply narrow limits 
ot natiohal jurisdiction; a strong organization could not impair the right of a oo~staJ. . .. 

_State to exercise its natural vocation to exploit the resouroes of the sea-bed and super-
ja.oent waters off its shores within a reasonable dis•tanae. The .Committee aliould proceed 
carefully and methodically and not feel compelled to reach an-agreement quickly merely 
for the 'sake Qf reaching ~l".reement. 



- 18 .. 

ls:J.W.~.liFAN (India) said that his delegation endorsed the statement by the 
USSR representative at the 56th. meeting of the main Committee thatfthe provisions 
relating to the international machinery tor the area should form an integral part ot 
the international tree.t;i, embod.ring the intarna.t:Lonal regime.!! That uas a corollary 
of the Declaration of Principles in General Assembly res~lution 2749 (mr). 

As he himself had pointed out at the 4Sth meeting of ·the Commi.ttee,21 there were a 
tewmatters of principle relating to the regime and machinery which needed ~ther 

I \ 

olarifioa.tion in the SU.b-Oommittae. They included the nature and scope.of the funo~ions 
ot the international machinery, the nature of the oontrol to be exercised by the 
international machinery 'Over the area and its res~Ul"ces, and the nature of th{;:: deoiaion~ 
making proceeses within the international machinery, other questions.were the ba$iS £or 
sharing among the international comm.unity the be1lefits ar~.sing frc,i1 exploiting the. 
reiuouroesJ and the mitigation of any adverse economic oonse4u.enoea of exploiting t;h.e 
resources in the international area. By eluo!dating those problems it should be pQas:Lble 
to move on to the problem ot negotiating precise draft treaty articles. Obviously the 
differing national interests would have 't,obe x-aoono:1.led. 

If :t t was agreed that the regime refe1"red to in paragraph 9 of the Deale.ration of 
Principles was to be estAblished to give effect to all the provisions of the De,o:t.ax-ation, 
the soope of the international machinery would have to be comprehensive. Onlf through 
international :machinery 'W:l.th broHd scope and funotio11s could the provisions ot the 
Deolaro.t:i.on, which embodiec1 political decisions by the international oommun:L.t1, be given 
etteot. 1'hose pPlitical d~o1sions provided the foundation for the structure of the 
international regimi, and were based on the .10011.omic, scientific and teol'ttlioal ree.li ties ..;;, 
so ably desoribed by the representative of Maltefel ... of an area encompassing a large 
portion ot the planet. 

Another aspect of the international regime was that, a.o·oording to pa.ragr•p~ 9 of 
the Deolarat:i.on of Principles, it was to apply to the s<aa-bed and ooean floor and the ... 
su.bsoil the~aof beyond the limits of national ju-risdiction - :L,e. what was known as 

'' 
"the area." .;. and not i;nerely to the area ts resouroes. In tl).e Seoretary-General' s· Study 
on Internat~onal Maohiner, reference was made to the possible range of functions and 

// See A/A0.13S/SR.;6. • 
i/ See A/AC.138/SR,48. 
g/ See A/A0.138/SR,56 and 57. 



- 19 ... 

p(.)'Wt\rs concerning the peaoetul uses of the pea.-bed1 other than exploration and exploi• 
tation of reaouroes.'11 His delegation was not in a position to pronoiinoe oa.tegorioally 
on the,preoiae range of such fUl.1otions and powers., but it had ~e~d with interest the 
prov:1.sions contail1ed in the dratt oonven~ion submitted by the United States of America.§/ 

In order to have the necessa:ry-·soope to conform. with the basic principles referred 
to in the Deolara.tion of l?rinoiplea·., the structure of the ms.oh:lne1,y would hav:e to be so 
devised as to have an eoonomio, teohnioal al'ld aormnerc:La.l wing aonoerned with exploration 
and exploitation of resour.Qes, allowing for the equitable sharing by all Sta.tee of' the 
bene:tlta to be.derived therefrom and bearing in mind the special interests and needs c,f 
developing·oo'Uhtries - whether coastal or land-looked; and a general or political wing 
oonoerned• with .other :t'unotions ·concerning the inteJ.'lnat:l.onal area. The former would deal 
with the regulation and oo-ordination of all aotivit:Les relating to exploration and 
e~loitation-while the latter would deal w:1.th other aspects of the international area, 
suoh as co~ordination with other international organi~at:Lona concerned ,dth the marine 

. envir~rnnent and with questions relating to the use of the ·area exolusively for peaceful 
purposes. More important, it could take action, in co-operation with other agenoiea, 
,to minimize the adverse oonsequenoes or exploiting the resources of the international 
area as well as to.meet the partiau.lar requirements of lend-looked countries. 

The representative of Ceylon had made the interesting suggestion that the authority 
should be em.powered to explore the international sea"bed and 8A"Ploit its resouroaa for 
peaceful ~~.1rpoees, using either its .own faoiUtiea, or facilities proow.~ed by 1t £or 
the purpose. The international ma.ohinery would not be nble to participate directly in 
the exploration and e,cploitation of the sea-bed area immediately it was created, but a 
pro"ri.sion ot ~hat kind would give it the authority to do so once the neoessary skills 
had baen developed, direot oapital investment had become possible and the economio aapeota~ 
of direct participation had been proved. 

F,:,r the deoi'Sion-making processes within the international machinery to be politioal.11 
aooeptable, all nations muet be able to participate in them. It llould be neither dt!sirable 
nor practicable to leave decision .. making to the most developed or industriall.1 adva.noed 
countries, while a system of weighted voting would violate 'l;he principle of the sovereign 
equality of" nations. The P1"inoiple of democratization of' international relations con­
tained in the Lusaka Declaration ot September 1970 should be embodied in any future . 
provision oonoerning the regime and the maohineey. 

']/( A ~ep Qf-oW ..Rt22nl§ pt .. RJle . .Jl!;enJ, .A§P&blz, ~ntY--:ti:Wl Seswl'\, ~-D..'U 
2:J. IA/ 8021 , annex I:tl, paras. 106 ... 14-0. 
§/ ~., annex V. 



A/Ao.1,s/SO,I/sa.3 

Two other a.ape.eta, .-of interest. were the question of the equi tab;Le distribution ot 
. ' .' "' . • ' 

~,ti tQ and :the queatton ~f the economic implications, of ex:plo:l. ting. the resc,-uroes. The 
representat:tve ot 04\flon had mad~ 8: ,ralue.ble .suggestion oonoer.¢.ng the method and· basis 
qf benefit sharing" Ai~ th~ ~5th ·meeti~g of the,. Eoonomic and Teohnioal Sub-Committee t~e 
Under-Saoretary-General for Eoonomio and Social Affairs had stressed the need for the . . 
wbble rqe of economic and financial aspects o:t s•a-bed resource exploitation to be· 
oaref'.qll:, ,et~:iied, ainoe- there ·would be little point ~-~ distributing the benefits of 
au.oh exploitation under an international 1legime , to all developing counti;ies it they 
were thereby deprived of some of the benefits they now enjoyed from exploiting their . 
own natural resources which constituted one ol their few advantages in-a competitive 
world.91 In his delegation's _.view, the international regime should not disregard .auoh 
problems as.the provision ot regulations covering impo~ts and taxation aa well as, a 
degree of planning, in relation to the .actual exploitation of marine resouroea ca· in 
the context a,f a glob~ development strategy. 

As he had stated to the Oommi ttee ,'JJJ/ h~ was in favour of a stage-.by•stage approa,oh • 
to the in:~rnational re~ so that agreemtsnt oould be reached on some of the leas 

, . . 
oontrov:ers~~ aspects, such as maoh.inery. The establishment of working gi-oups. on·~ec:lee 

.. ~ . . 
subjeots should tollow rather than preoede d1soussion on some of the general issues 

• 
which he had outlined • 

.. 
. . . . 

. 
2/ See A/AO.l'JS/so.2/L.9 
19/ See A/A0.138/SR.48. 



1111121 !! El 11a4sa:uwau: l & ]□!ESL t a S:HIGIUI I pus ■ca Jtdt!J!IJL.tlZLJdi!JLH iii$ us•1s I 

... 21..; A/AC4l;t8/sc.I/SR,4 

SUMMARY RECORD OF TBE'FOURTH MEETINO 
Held on Thursday, 2; March 1971, at 5.00 p.111.. 

Cl,l§irman~ Mr. SEATON United Republio of Tanzania 

PROGRAMME OF WORK .FOR ,1971 (A/Ac.1.3s/sc.I/:t.2) (g'Oncluded,) 

·~ .lilWQ!S (United Kingdom), noting that the F;ub-Commi ttee had before it 

certain text~ which sho'Ul.d help· to provide a basis for its work - ino:Luding the draft 
conventiovroposed by the United States of America'J.I and the working papers sublDitted 

• by- Fl'anoe2 and the United Kingdornlf -, expressed the hope that other texts would be 

submitted. to the Sub-Committee at its aummer session, since it was only by comparing 
and discussing various concrete proposals that the S,ub-Oommittee would be able to make 
progress.· 

At its forthcoming session, the first aim shotl;].d be to seek some comm.on ,ground in 

a general discussion of the principal components of tlte futt1re regime. It would not, 

however, be possible to me.k~ much progress in a g~na,:al debate of the traditional kind .. 

Some kind 0£ framework must be imposed on the disousaicn. After the preae~t general 
exchange of views, the next step should be to ·a-r;ran.ge a series ot more. specitio 
exchanges on the basis of' 8-J."'l agenda which might be ~de up. o'!; the following item$: the 

atruoture of' t,he international ati.thority; the range of 'ita .functions; types and 

• methods of licensing; arre,ngements for participation by all States parties in 

activities in the international area; the diatribution to. States pa.rt:tea and. to ·thE'l 

international coxnmtllµty of the benefits to be expeoted ·from operations in the i~ter­

nationa.l area; the settlement or disputes, and. so forth.. The .sub ... Conm1it-t1ee might thus 

find a middle way ·between too general a discussion and the premature remi~sion to wc:rid.n 

groups of questions which ha.ft not been sufficiently· discussed~ If tha.t approach was 

acceptable, the Ohairma.n, .. ··vd.th the .aasistance of the Secretariat,. oould. 'Perhaps pre).lare 

such an agenda for the summer session. 

'J./ See Q;ff;l.~ fie ciQ,,,rd1t, .!2l the Gel)8:t'a;J. ,,As aembJ.Ju:_Twent:i:-:f...;!;t!l)1 __ ,Se l! s.io,r1, 
~;i.ement No,. ,·2.l. (A 8021), annex V. 

! '"> / 
fi:.I ll2!g_, , annex VII. 

JI :Jl>ig_. , annex VI. 



A/Ac;13s/sc.1/sR.4 • - 22 -

His delegation considered it essential to set up working groups, since the 
formtiiation of pr~cise· recommendations and the drafting of articles could be accomplish: 

more easily in relatively s.ma~l in~o~al croups., but it was vital that all delegations 
should have con'tidence in such groups and that the le.tter should work with a 

sufficiently preG:! se :mru1date and .011 the basi~ of ·a sufficiently close approxililation of 

vie't-ls. Otherwise, it was likely that their l'"ecommendations would be challenged when 
' ' 

they came before the Sub-Conmrl. ttee and the resulting confusiol"1 would be even worse than 
at the out'Set ... 

His delegation had. an open mirid on the question of whether the working groups 
should be established on a semi~permanent basis or should be more ephemeral bodies, 

with instructions to work on a specific text or recommendation and report back to the 

Sub-Comm.itte:e a few days later. In his delegation's view, it would be prematur1a to 

disouf:ls such questions.at the present stage; it would be preferable for the 'Sub­
committee co continue its debate on ·the basis of' a specific agenda and to decide in 
the light, of that debate what.subsidiary organs should be established. 

In view·of the great importance of its tasks, the Connnittee must proceed by a 
methcd which commanded general confidence. It should be remembered, however, that 
there was nothing the Committee could do to affect the pace of technological advances. 
Many developed: countries did not benefit from such advances, but there were many 

developing countries that did. It was a question of geology, not industrializationo 

However, any hesitation reduced the prospects for genuine co-operation for the benefit 
of the international co:m:munity as a whole. , 
. The United Kingdom wished to express its satisfaction that the agreement reached 
on the organization of workfJ would enable all the Sub-Committees to consider the 
question·of the extent t...f' the· international sea-bed area in connexion 'With the ·other 
items before them. Nothing·coul.d impede the· Sub~Conmtl~tee's work·more than the 

·exclusion of. that issue from its province. It was obvious that the resources of the 
sea-bed varied vastly from one part of the ocean to another, according to geological 
circumstances, and it would be impossible to develop views on the detailed ·provisions 

of the regime for ·:the int.ernatjonal area excep~ on the basis of a hypothesis about 
•· ,, . . 

. the extent of that area. Similarly, it would be meaningless to take up the question 
'I:, 

/.J See A/AC .. 138/SR.45,, 



-·23 - A/ AC .13S/so .. I/SR. 4 

of the: economic iriplicatiohs of the exploitation of the are.a, as so r.1any delegations 
had ·urged, except on the basis• of scm1e working lzypothesis or a series of hypotheses 

about the area and .the resources which would compete with the minerals produced on land 

or offshore within the limits of national.jurisdiction. 

Mr. STEVENSON (United States of America) thought that it would be useful to 

have a co:mmon basis of discussion, in view· of the intensive work to be done at the 

summer session. It might be useful therefore for the Rapporteur to identify issues on 

which members of the Sub•Commi ttee might wish to give their views. Such a compilation 

would, of course, be exclusively for the converj.ence of delegations and would in. no. way 

prejudice their positions on the substance of the issues or on the programme of work. 

In that spirit,, his delegation wished to recall that in 1969 it had circulat-ed to 

members· of the Committee certain r:iaps of the sea-beds prepared by experts of the United 

S·i:iates Geol·ogical Survey. Shoti.1d any delegation desire additional copies, the United 
I . 

States delegation would be happy to forward then upon its return to Washington. In-

addi tiort., it would do its utmost t.o circulate other relevant technical materiaJ.. 
available: to it, 

On 23 May 1970, the President of the·United States of America had issued a st~te­

ment on United States ocean policy, devoted in large o~asu.re to matters now before the 

·Sub-Oomrnittee. Pursuant to that statement, the.-Uniteo..States delegation had submitted 

a draft conventiqn on the international sea-bed area.'jj It was now circulating to 

all delegations docuraents containing the President's statement and the draft ~onvention, 
. . 

in order ·bo enable them to 'Ullderstsnd the United Sta·tes point of view in connexion ·with 
the prooess 0£ negotiation and mutual acco:nn-aodation which was nowbeginning. 

He had already stated in the ConnnitteeW that the pr~cess of acco:rmnodation should 

be distj.ng1:lished from supe:;:,ficial or arbitrary- compromises. He now wished to outline 

some of the ways in which the drc.ft convention sought to achieye s~ch an acoomnodation • 
. 

For example, there was no doubt that.: there was a direct. -r.elationship between the 

powers and the structure of international machinery, If the powers were to be ext~naive 
and were to apply to areas of vital interest to States, then it was necessary to he.ve 

a st,rti.cttire whlch would inspire • con.fidence in States ana. would ensure re.spons:i.b~li ty, 

i/ See Official Records of the General Assembly 1-Tw~nty-fifth Session, Supplement 
No. 21 (A/8021 /,annex V. • ••• 

2/ See A/AC.138/SR.51 



A/ AC .138/S.d .-I/SR. 4 .. 24 -

efficiency and expertise. 'If that was achieved., the desire of nany countries, including. 

the United States, for a machinery with extensive powers co'.Ul.d be accommodated with· 
their understandable concern· about the pos::;ible harmful effects of such t"'...achinery on 
the1r interests, a concern which his country also shared •. 

The problem of rasponsibility was one of the most difficult to resGlve whenever a 

new organize,tion was· being 'created. Eyery cour1try understandably wished to ensure that 

the organization would not disregard its' ;interests and wished to have a voice in its 

affairs. In other words, it was essential to J;,..ave a plenary body. The draft convention . 
submitted by the United States therefore provided for an assembly of all contr~cting 
parties. However, a plenary body would be too large to deal with the, current business 

of' the organization and its decisions, made by a simple or two-thirds majority, lllight 

not necessarily reflect the broad spectrum of' opinion in terms of total popuJ.ation or 
other relevant criteria. In other words, while meeting the needs of some States 
regarding responsibility, it might not meet the needs of' others - indeed, of those 
whose interests might be most directly affected by many of the decisions ta.ken. 

Consequently, a represep.tative body 'Was required. The draf't convention provided 
for a council of twenty-four States to meet as often as necessary. Eighteen of those 

States, at least twelve or whioh would be developing countries, would be elected by 

the assembly every three· ·years. The remaining six seats would -be assigned to countries 

regarded as the·most industrially advanced, in accordance ·with specified criteria. 
Decisions by the council would require a majority of each group, thus ensuring the .. 
necessary, balance. Furthermore, at least two members of the council must be land-locked 
or shalt-locked Statesl,t W!dle the specific details or the council's structure.required 
further di·scussion, j_t was essential to preserve the underlying principle that there 

should be a· broad spectrum·of support for it~ decisions •. 
It was of' particu1ar importance that the revenues from sea-bed resources should 

not be wa~rted on needless administrative expenses. At the same time, the organization 

must have· the necessary expertise. That could be achieved by establisJdng small 

functional c·ommissions, composed of' persons with • t.he necessary skills· to carry out. 
certain important functions. Those persons need not be'full-time employ&.ea of the 
authority and their number should be proportional to the work'to be performed~ 

\ 



- 25 - A/ AC 11138/SC iI/SR. 4 

The experience·o:r national adninistrations showed that, while administrative . . 

functions ware in the9ry subordinate to higher policy decisions, in :tact political 
organs were not equipped to provide the necessary·check on the·detailed exercise of 
administrative or regulatory power. Accordingly, a. system for review of administrative 
and regulatory actions would be needed. His country proposed that an independent 
tribunal should be established not only for the settleoent of disputes between States 

but also for·the settlement of disputes between the authority, on the one hand, and an 
interested State· or individual, on the other. Thus, a state which felt that its rights 
under the .convention were being infringed by the authority could brin~ the matter before 

the tribunal. 

A related problera was the degree to which issues would be decided in the treaty or 
left for later decision by the authority, since there was clear..cy·a need for ~ome 
degree of flexibility~ All delegations would prefer to simplify the drafting of the 
treaty as much as possible, but the Comnittee 1 s mandate was to prepare a. regime as well 
as machinery. Even if that were not the case, States might feel understandably hesitant 
about entering into a treaty without some fairly detailed idea of how it would operate. 
In other words, detailed provisions might facilitate rather than delay agre.e}jlent on the 
treaty. The United states Government had therefore sought to :resolve the problem by 

establishing, in the appendices, the genera.1 outlines of the system and -specifying 
:minimum and maxir11.m l:fa.1ita for future decisions by the authority, by way of exanple 

only, since a great deal of addi·hional consultation would be required ir1 order to 
. 

detemine what ,-ms eoono~ically feasible. 
By far ~he most difficult problem. was the precise definition of the area of the 

sea-bed beyond the liln.its of national j,uriscliction. The problem was how to reconcile 
the benefits which t1any nations might deri'V'e from the international regime with those 

I 

which coastal States £alt they _would gain from exclusive jurisdictiot1. The former 
would like the regime to apply to the broadest p1•aotioable area; the latter would 
prefer it to be applicable to a. smaller area of the sea-bed. If States were free to 
fix their own limits, very little t-1ould soon be left of the co:mmon heritage of the 
international area. 



• A/AC,138/SC, I/S."t,4. - 26 -

In view of thEl~provisions of the Convention on the Continental Shelf,']/ the issue 

was whether·the international regime should apply to the entire sea-bed area beyond 
twelve miles·and beyond a depth' of 200 metres or whether it should apply to a amalle:r 
area. The decision had not been o.n easy one for his Government to take, any•mor& tl".ian 

it would be for many othe:r countries.. It was believed that there were subata.ntial 
r~soUX'.c&s in the con•tinental margin .off the coast of the United States b.eyond a depth 
of 200 metres. I·t uould be a mistake to believe that resources of interest beyond 

200 metres l::'.'y only off the coast of developi:pg countries. It would alao be a mistake. 
to believe that the resources of the sea-bed beyond a depth of 200 metres were 
incapable of being exploited. The question was whether the benefits from such 
exploitation should be enjoyed exolusively by th~ coastal State and by Statos li~e the 
United s·tates whose nationals were capable of exp~oiting such resotirces under 
concessions granted by the ooasta.l State, o:r· by the international community as a whole • 

. As a nmnber of delegations had asked £or some indication of the magnitude of 
futttre exploitation, he would like to give the floor to an expert from the United 
sta.tea Geological Survey to speak on that subject. 

Mre.H.cKEty.EY (United states or .~erica) said that experts agreed that there 
·tJere encrmous ·quantities o.f petroleum ond nineral ores in the sea-bed beyond the 

200-metre isoba.th. Opinions were very divided, however, on the rate at whioh those 
resotU'ces could 'be e:xploited, some forecasting considero.ble production in the near 
future while others expected a delay of seV'eral decades. In a:ny event, Jhere were too 
many uncertainties to justify forecasts of ·che e.xnpunt of revenue that might be derived 
from ~xploitation or the area in question. 

Nevertheleae:, current advances in .exp:..oitation. techniques indicated that the 

production of petroleUr.t and the rlining of manga.neee nodules beyond the 200-metre 

tsobath would be feasible within a few years. It was also known thnt several firms 
were,plannitig to begin such operations within the next few years. 

For the moment, the de'9pest water depth :f.'or a producing oil well was only 114 met:rf3S• 

However, an Arnerico.n company had already dl'illed a 11dry0 well in o. water depth of 
.455 metres and had found. oil in othar wells drilled in the same area in water depths 

'JI See United Nations, 1'.re§:.t~ §e;g:ie.§.., vol, 499, P• 311. 



- 27 -

of up to .321 metrea .. In ol:'der to conti11ue prospecting and to begin oil production 

.from that field, it p~anned to install a platform. in 214 metres of water. The firm in 

question and some or its competitors were C'urrently studying the possibility of 
petroleum production in water depths of as much as 600 :metres. 

For i ta part, the National Science Fou11dation had developed methods of drilling 
cora holes at abyssal depths as great as 6,140 metres and had recently developed the 
hole re-entry capability required for exploratory drill:l.ng at such depths. Deep wa.ter 

drilling was thus becomint tec}µ1ically feasible. 

The rate of development of petrolem exploitation beyond the 200-metre i.soba.th 
depended on many factors, particularly the production of hydrocarbons from other 

sources such a.a oil or gas from land or shallow off-shore wells, shale, tar sand or 

coal. Developments were difficuJ.t. to predic.t and would, of course, depend on the 

respective production costs, The cost of underwater petroleum exploitation inc:reased 
sharply with depth.. However, technological breakthrourihs could completely change the 

competitive position of the v1rious p:r-odticts considered vis~\-vis each other and vis-a.­

Viet other ~·ources of e11ergy which might a:f'i'ec·b the hydrocarho11. market-

Petroleum exploitation beyond the 200-metre isobath l-tas encouraged, however, by 

the interest of consur.1ers in secui·ing sources of supply close to the point or consumption. 

In addition, the relative costs of exploitation dropped shs.:rply i:t;i giant fields and 

prospects for the discovery of giant fields beyond the 200-metre depth were good. If' 

petroleum compa.11ies uere currently spending substantial sums on ~ophysical eXl')loratioi-1 

in that area, it was undo11bted.1:t because they expected an economic return in the 

relatively near future. 

Projections oi' petroleum demand indicated that annt1al cons'l..'l:Mption would rise fron 

about l? ,000 r.dllio11 barrels a.t present to about 26,000 million barrels in 1980, of 

which 8,000 to 10,000 million, or 30 to 40 per cent, would he supplied by off-shore 

wells. Al though it was impossible to foreco.st how much of' that would co:me from the 

exploitation of deposits at depths greater ·hhv.n 200 metres it could be said that, even 

if it were only a few per cent, the res1D.tant revenues would be appreciable, whGther in 

the form of royal ties of various kindrJ or even in terms of' c..tdva11ce cash payments. Under 

the United Ste:l:ies proposal for ttn interl'1ationo.l trusteeDhip area, coo.stal States wotu.d· 

. decide on the 0011ditions for issuing exploitation rights. If those 1~ights vrere sold by 

cor.i.peti tive bidding, as tira.s done i11 the Uni teci States for the so.le of leases on the 

outer contine11ta.l shelf, cash payr:1ents woulcl be made i11 ac1v::mce of production i::md of 

exploratory drilli11g. Since 1954, leases sold by the United States 110.d brought in sooe 



A/AC. 138/sc. I/SR. 4 - 28 -

$4,400 million, and at least as much aga:tn would b.a paid in 'bhe form 0£ royalties. . ' 

Needless to say, the bids made reflected both anticipated costs and the degree of 
certainty that the area explored would be· produQtive. Where economic production wa.s· 

feasible, competition between.c~mpanie$ to secure leases on neighbouring ar.eas was 

likely to ~ncrease substantially, It was, of course, difficult to predict the mo.gnitude 
of possible revenues but· it shotu.d not be forgotten that., as previously me~rLioned, 

revenue might be received before drilling or production began. 
While there were indications that most off-shore petroleum resources were located 

in the continental margins, the richest manganese oxide deposits mainly lay beyond the . . 
margir1s on the deep ocean floor. 

It was estimated from experience on lanc1 £1.1."l.d from total consumer demand that 

:revenues derived from petroleum production on the continental margins beyond a depth 
of 200 metres. would be r·ar greater than those that could be expected from the miping of 

nodules or other mineral ores.· It uas possible, however, that nodule p;oduction might 

begin first. The nodules were commercially interesting at the moment largely because 
of" the nickel, copper and cobalt they conJvained, although a:b least one company was 

considering recovery of manganese also. 

Despite pessimistic foreca.s'hs thut J?rofitable production of those metals from 
deep-sea nodules would not be possible in the innnediate future, nineteen organizations 

... 
in five countries, rnainly private companies but including some government institutions, 
were, engaged in developing the techniques required for such production. Over the last 

few years, sev·ert'.l firms had be~n spending sevaret.l million dollars a year on such work. 
It 

Experiments had been carried out in the sumraer of 1970 by a Uni tecl. States firm, while 
the Japanese had been experimenting with a continuous line bucket ~redge. Encouraging 
results had been obtained in both cases. Two United States firms were planning to 
begin comrne:x·cial p:roduc..tion by J~9'75 and believed it might amount to about 15,000 tons 

of nodules a day by 1980.' Of course, even:lf that objective were achieved, it was 
difficult to forecast how much revenue would be de:r·ived from the operations, bt'lt it 

was cleal"' thtl'tt the companies involv:ed expected eJqJloi tation to become profitable. At 

the preserrc stage i't wo.s importo.nt to recognize that, by ·che end of the decade, 
.production would undoubtedly have reached substantial proportions end would have begun 

' 
to generate revenue. 



- 29 .. 

Some people had stated that the_proapeotive revenues from. the .udning of manganese 
nodules, were not an economio justification for the establishment of a strong inter­

national regime to govern sea,bed resource development. However, if the .. t regime applied 
to the continental margin beyond the 200-metre isobath, lt·would o.lso govern the 
exploitation of petroleum reserves wi:~h a far greater potential value. Moreover, before 

' . . 
production could begin, it was necessary to cre,1te a favourable investment climate, and 

that might not be possible in the absence of an i11ternationally agreed regime. Further­
more, even if it were possible, it was still necessary to establish the regime since an 
international regulation reflecting the interests of all and equitable shal~ing of· the 
benefits derived from exploitation of the sea••bed could not be achieved without it. 

Some people had also claimed that rev~nues from the sea-bed area beyond the 
200-metre isobath would be j,nsignificant, but the progress already achieved and 

potential future progress would seem, on the contrary, to point to positive results~ 

Mt• STEl,~.N:SOJ'i (United States of 1':Jnerica) said that petroleum and natural gas 

deposits, which, as 1:,is delegation's expert had point out, were usually situated in the 
continental margins, would probably be exploited first in the shallower par·hs of those 

. 
margins. That meant, if' it was agreed that national jurisdiction should have wide 

limits, that mos-t of those deposits would be excluded from the ir1ternational reg-t.une in 
the years to come. The United States expert had also pointed out that the cost of oil 
p~oduction would increase substantio.lly with depth. Consequently, the further the 

limits of national jurisdiction were extended beyond the 200 metre isobath, the small~r 
would be ·bhe i11ternational revenue from oil production. If the 200-mile limit 1-1a.s 

adopted, most of the continental margins would be. exclµded from the international regime. 

The United States hacl therefore proposed, on the Ol'le hand, ·that the international 
r~gime should apply to-the broadest·practicable area ahd, on the other, that coastal 

States sho.uld be given substantial but .ca.refully defined r:tg:1ts under the international 

regime in respect of the licensi11g of' exploration and exploitation in the continentd 

margins beyond a depth of 200 metres or a distance of twelve miles. According to the 
United States proposal, each coast State acted as ntrustee 11 £or the internatio11al 
community, the purpose of the system being to ensure a balance of advantages as between 
the coastal State and the international cornn1unity. 

Mr. KHAN:1~Cl-IB)_T_ (Kuwait) said that the international Tegime, if it was to be 
fair, should be based on the principles set forth in the Declaration contained in General 
Assembly·r~s~lutip:U 2749 .(XXV), the C'hief of which W?,s that the area in question was the 
common heritage of a:11 mankind. It followed that that area was not subject· to 
a.ppropriatipn by any States or persons, natural or juridical, in their own interests. 



- 30 -

His delegation thought that the area should be as wide as w~s possible without 

encroaching on the legitimate and tra4:i.tional rights of coastal States, and that th~ 
regime to which it was subje9t, which should be as pow~rful as __ possible., should be 

applied by~ body.having complete jurisdiction over the area. in question and power 'bo 
manage, e.dm:tnister., supervise, con.trol, explore and exploit the. resources it contained. 

The regime would be universal and should be established by ~n international treaty 
i 

which was also universal. In uccord.ance with article 19.of the Vienna Convention on 

the Law of Tree.tios,Y the treaty should forbi~ any reservation inco~o.tible ·with the 

object and purpose of the treaty establishing the regime •. 

.Another impqrtan·h principle in the Declaration was that of th~ equite.ble sharing 
of the benefits derived from exploiting the area's reEloUI'ces among all Powers and 
countries in the world, taking into particular consideraticm. the 11eeds and rights of 

the developing oount:ries, whethe1"' coastal or land-locked. 

Subject to such equitable sharing ru1d to the recognition of the internation&J. area 
aa the common heritage of mankind, and bearing in mind the present role of the United 
Nations in development questions ·and the more important part it was required to play in 
that field, his delegation Ul"ged that some of the resources derived from the exploitation 

of the sea-bed should be all()ca·bed to the United Natior1s, o. portion of the pr.oceeds 
being devoted to .strengthening the Organization itself and the remainder to development 
programmes ir,wlementec.1 either directly by UNDP or by UNDP acting in co-operation with 
.the specialized o.genctes, each of uhich 001'1t1,ibuted within its sphere of competence. 

Reference he .. d been ma.de to the inteI·ests and needs of developing, countries. Those 

countries should be protected against the abusive exploitatiqn of the sea-bed, which 
•· . 

could be dangerous for their economies. His clelegatio11, ill agreement ·w:t th a number of 

others, therefore in•bended to request the Secretary-General to undertake a study of the 
problem which would • serve in the future as a be.sis for the prote(1tion of the legitimate 

interests of the developing countries. In that ref3peot, he could not agree with the 
United Kingdom .. representative, who had said that i·h would be poin•bJ.ess to tackle the 

question of the econo~in implications of the exploitation·of the international area of 

the SAe:-bed and the ocean floor. As the representative of a developing count!"/ whose 

economy was based on the exploita.tio11 of. a specific product a.nd whose very survival 

a/ See Qf.t:;J,,cial .. 1lgcox:ds q:t__th~ U:ti.~d N tions Conference on the L w of T:i::eAt.ieJ!., 
Dogum~nt§ . .P.f. ,]}1,e P.,op..t:~~¥-qe (Un1ted Na:bions publication, Sales No.: E.?0.V.5 , P• 291. 



- 31 - .A/A001,38/sc.I/SR.4 

might be threatened by the exploitatio11 of' the reserves of that product, existing in the 

sea-b6ld, he p:i:·otested against any att'empt to prevent countries i'roril de.tt,ndin~ their 

interests. His attitude found support, mox·eover, in the ides. embodied in the last 

preambular paragraph of General Assembly resolution 2749(X':l.V'). 

With regard to the international machinery to be se·b up., it was absolutely 

essential to make it a powerful body. It should include an assembly composed o:t all 

the countries in the world; the e.asem.bly would be the poli tioal organ responsible in 

future for controlling and supervising the exploitation of the sea-bed. Parallel to 

the assembly there should be an. executive council whose cc::;mposi tion, based on the equal 

representation of all participating States, would be defined later. In that connexion, 

his delegati0n could not agree with the at•liit,ude of' the Ul1ited States of lunerica as 

reflected in its draf·t or.mventio11 a11d in the statement just made by the United States 

representative. In particulc.l", it was totally opposed t.o the idea of any preferential 

voting :rights. Moreover, equal representation 011 the executive council would be nei ths:r 

just or fair to tihe developing covntries, since it would correspond neither to the 

number of such cotmtrias in the United N~tions nor to their pop1.L1atio~, which 

constituted r110re than two-·bh:i.rds of total world population. 

In addition., the proposed inte1.'national machinery should have absolute jurisdiction 

r,•rer the international sea-bed are;.1. and be empowered to liltlno.ge, supervise., control and 

administer all ac·hivities undertukeri on the sea-bed nnd hhe ocean floor and in th.a 

subsoil thereof, on t,he understanding that the equitable exploi tat.ion of the resources 

they contained wot1ld 11o't be possible without the du<.~ application of the principle that 

those resources ue1.,e 'lihe common horitage of all mankinc1. 

On that poi:l'l'b, it was worth examining the Uni tec1 States proposal for the establish­

ment of a11 :iin'her11i:::.tio11al trusteeshi.p ureo. 11 • In fact, as presellted in the draft 

convention, the proposal was not for inter11s:bi011al trusteeship in the true meaning of 

the words, hut £01• ci. juxtaposition of natio1ml jurisdic·tions. His delegation mistrustea: 

that proposal, beco.use the trusteeship area would cove'l." the most accessible part of the 

sea-bed, the exploitation of which would be lea.st costly. Iri that way, the internatinal 

ares. would be reducec1 to 'the very lowest terms. The experience of the oil-producing . 

countries (includit1g Kuwait) with the concession-holding compunies revealed only too 

clet:trly the da1.1.ge1"s of that course. For many decades, the companies had kept the lion's 

share for themselves, until political pressure had compelled ·hhe1n to accept wha·h wo.s 

called a 1:f;fty--fiftyu share., al though it was far fror,1 being so. The system recommended 



... 

A/AC.138/Sq,r./sR.4 - 32 - • 

by tha United States of America amounted to giving the rich countries, vhich possessed 
the necessary technical reaourcea, the chanoe of becoming the partners .... theoretfca.lly 
on an equal footing., but in £act to an extent which would anount to two ... thirds or more -
of any coast&l country which wished to e:x:ploit its mineral resources but was not in a 
position to do so, 

It was worth racallin€$, in that rE!spect, the crisis exper:l,enoed by Iran -when it 
had been forced, for la!;:k of the necessary resources, to stop oil production at •the 
time 0£ its dispute with the concession-holding companies. The question was whet.he~ 
the third world was prepared to accept a new form of exploitation of its resouroes or 
whether, in the esta.blishrnen"t. of an international machinery, it would find a way of 
defending its interests . 

. It was thus essential to establish Vf:J,ry powerful international machinery whioh 
,would directly exploit the re~urces of international ocean space for the developing 
countries through private or mixed, govermaental or inter-governmental bodies, 
ix•respective of their economic, social or political system. 

Attention had been arawn to the importance of scientific research. His delegation 
thought that it should be absolutely unrestricted, on condition, of course, ·that no 
such activity could fot1n. the lega.l basis fo:i:· ex1y claims with respect to the intex-national 

sea.-bed area or its resources., as in £act was laid down in operative paragraph 10 of 
the Declaration of P11inciples Laeneral Assembly resolution 2749 (m'.)J. If the fullest 
advantage was to be taken or· scientific ·research, its findings should be automatically 

* disseminated to all States, it must not remain the private preser-ve of the developed 
countries and its benefits must be ma.de available to all countries, In ~3hort., coastal 
S·hates must be a.blG to participate in scientif'ic research activities and any other 
operations carried. out in the .. neighbourhood or their shores. 

The question of scientific research was linked with that of the training of 
personnel from the ~eveloping countries, Only a powerful international machinery could 
ensure the ~raining of ~he technical person11el those countries needed. !n fa.ct, it waa 
lack of qualified technical personnel .that had obliged Ira11 to stop production during 
the crisis he had me11t.ioned, and eve~ now the developing countries did not have 
technicians capable of ·taking in hand the exploitation of th'eir resources. 



A/AC.138/SC.I/SR.4 

The Canadian representative had suggested in the Gomm:tttee21 the establishment of 
a transitional regime. The developing' countries bad 't0arnt to miatx-ust that. type of 

procedure. That was why they wanted· a· .strong international regime, administered by a 

poweri'ul•mac·binery, which would defend ·chem from··unjust and unfair exploitation. 
His delegation insisted that priority should'be given to the establishment of the 

regime and: the setting-up of the international machinery, as·well as to the study of 
I 

the economic 'implications of the exploitation of the se(t-bed and -"che steps to be taken 

to protect the interests of the developing countries. 
Mr. WILLIAMS (Un:i.ted Kingdom); exero:tsin~ his right of' reply, said that :by . 

quoting his'word.s out of their 6onte:xt, the Kuwaiti representative had distorted·their 
·, 

meaning. The United Kingdom delegation's intention ue.s to express its satisfaction at 

the agreement concerning the organization of work, which would greatly facilitate ·bhe 
Committee 1 s task. It had never wished to suggest that the question of the possible 
economic implications 0£ the exploitation of the san.-bed was unimportant. 

Ml'..t ROS§.IPm~ (Cyprlls) thanked the United States delegation for the information 

it had gi,;en on progress in the exp1oit.a:b1on of' the sea-bed!> 

Activities in tho.t field ·were bound to expand in a way that would affect the a..~a 

it was proposed' to reserve £or the i11tel:'ne.tional community, . That trend became 
increasingly diff'icul·~ to arrest. Moreover, as the Malte.se representative had pointed 

out to the Committee,W there was a da:n~er toot the coastal States would decide 
unilaterally to extend the breadth oi'-the area. within their national jurisdiction. 
Until an international regime wao establiJ:1-hed., .. that· tendency would continue. and the 

mineral resources of the sea-bed would be increa:singly exploited by private.cpmpanies 
or by countries .. 

In ·the r.irctm1sta.:nces, there wo.a good reason to adopt interlm measures.. The General 
issembly, in resolution ~574 D (XXIV), had called for a noratorium., but that move _ha.d 
"had no effect, since no-one knew the limits of national juri.sdiotions. His delegation 

therefore considered that at its July session ·hhe Committee .should consider ways of 

i~posing an effective.moratorium under which States and persons, physical or juridical, 

-------
2/ See A/AC.138/sR.5$ 
lQ/ See A/AC.138/SR.57 



- 34 -

would be bound to abstain from all activities of exploitation beyond the 200--metre 
isobath or a twelv~ miles r breadth, whichever was more distant. Moreover,. during the 
mora.torium, no claim should Qe recognized to any part of the area under considera~ion 

r' 

or its resources, as provided £or.in General Assembly resolution 2574.D (XXIV). 
In addition, the General. Assembly, proceeding on the basis of the proposals which 

had been made with respect to a future regime, should set up a body to be responsible 
1 . • 

fot· tlYe exploration and exploitation • of the sea-bed and the ocean floor pending, a 
definit,ive decision on the ltmits of' ·the ocean space to be subject to internati~nal 

jurisdiction. The establishment of the regime would thus precede the definition of the 
area to which it would apply. 

Those suggestions were, of qourse, open to revision and his delegation was prepare 
to consi.der any proposals which migl;lt be made on the subject. What was important, 

however, .was to ·hake a decision which would ensure that the effort expended so far 
would· not be ·wasted. 

Mr• §TEWNSON (United States of .America) referred to his suggestion th~t the 

Rapporteur should be asked to draw up, for the July session, a list of topics and 

questions to be submitted to the conference on the law of the sea, on which members of 

the Sub-Collllllittee would be asked to give an opinion in the light of the statements made 

at the present session. 

Mr. PJ,i.OHA.SY~ (Austria), Rapporteur, said that, if the Sub-Committee wished, 
he was prepared to draw up a draft list witi1~ the aid of the Secretariat. 

Mr. KHLESTOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) considered that a clear 

picture c.Z' the statements made was furnished by the summary records of the .meetings, 
from which delegations could ascertain the various proposals which had been put·forwarc 
It was therefore unnecessary to submit further documents to the Committee. ·The list oj 
questions to be presented to the conference or.. the law of the sea could be drawn up in 

JuJ.y. 

;:Mr~. SQU.)MON (Trinidad and Tobago) agreed with the Soviet Union rGpre1SentativE 

Moreover·, the preparation of the list reque'sted by the General Assembly was outsiC: 

the Rapporteur's competence, and it should be drawn up either by the Commi ~tee or by .a. 

worlting group appointed by the Committee. The Sub-Gommittee ,should not unburden its 

responsibilities onto the R§l.pporteur. In July, the Sub-Committee should tackle three 

questions: the economic consequences of the exploitation of the resources .of th~ 
international area of o"cean space, the sharing of the benefits to be derived therefrom . 



- 35 ... A/AC.138/SC.!/SR.4 

and the access of land-locked eountries to the are& in question. The preparation of 
draft tr~aty articles ,ahould be ~eft to the very last. In any case, the general 
discussion was not yet over, and also the Group of 77 intended to prepare a working 
paper explaining its members I position with regard to the international regime 

contemplated. 
In view 0£ those various considerations, the only rational procedure was to wait 

until the July-August session to decide on methods of work. 
~r._$TEX]:NSON (Uni.tad States of .America) withdrew his suggestion. 
l!,he CHAIBk1PiN, summing up the discussion, said that a.ll delegations apparently 

preferred the _Sub-Committee not to begin work until its summer session. 
The United Str.tes representative had attempted to narrow the range of issues 

req•Jiring discussion in order to enable work to progress Bore speedily. The United 

Kingdom representative had offered suggestions which it seemed would enable the,Sub­
Oommittee, in the preliminary general debate, to decide which questions it would refer 

.to drafting groups' or to groups responsible for studying other questions within its 

terms of reference. 
One or two working papers would probably be placed before the sub-Committee in 

July in addition to those from France, the United Kingdom and tha United Sta+,3s of 
America and the Se.-!:retary-Gr-meral' s reports. The Sub-Committee might decide to examine 
those questions in general terr1s and establish working groups whose membership it would 
determine in due course* It would subsequently prepare a report for submission to the 
General Assembly together,w.i.th the draft treaty articles drawn up. 

The Chairman' s summar:{ was. approved. 
I 

The meeting rose at 6.40 p.m. 




